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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of MSEB Solar Agro
Power Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group * ), which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2025 and the consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income) , the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the period then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements of such subsidiaries as were audited by the other auditors the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
31 March 2025, and it's consolidated profit (including other consolidated comprehensive
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the
period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those SAs are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the
consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2013 . and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors
referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated financial statements
as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, are not applicable to the Company as it is an
unlisted company.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Board’s
Report, but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The Other Information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. .If based on the work we have performed and based on the work done
/ audit report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these Consolidated Financial Statements, that give a true and fair view of the
Consolidated State of Affairs, Consolidated Profit and Other Comprehensive Income,
Consolidated Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash Flows of the Group is in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection of the appropriate
accounting software for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations including
those related to retention of audit logs; the selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
/Amplementatlon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
5 @ely for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
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preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each
Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related

isclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are




inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of
such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

1.  We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiaries, , whose financial statements
reflect total assets of Rs 3,68,711 as at 31st March, 2025, total revenues of Rs.Nil and
net cash flows amounting to (Rs.17,28,698) for the period ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
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relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

2.

As required under Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act 2013 report on directions and
sub directions issued by The Comptroller and Auditor General of India under sub section
5 of Section 143 of the Act has been given along with the standalone financial
statements of the Company and hence the said report have not been produced along with
the Consolidated Financial Statements

As required by Sec 143(3) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of audit
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries as were
audited by other auditors as noted in the “ Other Matters “ paragraph , we report to the
extent applicable that :

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet , the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated statement of Changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind
AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act; ‘

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary
companies, , none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on
31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Group internal financial controls over financial
reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to



us and based on the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements of such subsidiaries as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph::

vi.

There were no pending litigations which would impact the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31° March 2025

the Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts,
including derivative contracts,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary
Companies during the period ended 31 March 2025

(a) The respective management of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and other auditors of subsidiaries respectively, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of subsidiaries to or
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company or any of subsidiaries (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; '

(b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and other auditors of subsidiaries , to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company
or any subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Holding Company or any subsidiaries shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Uitimate .
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us, and those performed by
auditors of the subsidiaries whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditors notice that has
caused us or other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-
clauses (iv-a) and (iv-b) above contain any material misstatement.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
Holding Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, accordingly
compliance with section 123 of the Act by the Holding Company is not applicable

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Group has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.



vii. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ( ‘CARQ") issued by Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in Auditor’s
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on
the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and based on our consideration
of CARO reports issued by respective auditors of the companies included in
consolidated financial statements, we report that there are no qualifications or
adverse remarks in these CARO reports

(h) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on the reports of the statutory auditors of subsidiary companies which were
not audited by us, the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary companies has not
paid managerial remuneration to their directors during the current period.

For Vinay Sanjay and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No: F-112195W

D T

/
CA Vinay Bhat
N v, Partner
e Membership No: 037274
Mumbai, - “UDIN: 26037274VLSTBG1250
Dated : 29th December 2025




Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph (2)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of MSEB Solar
Agro Power Limited as of and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of
MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company / Bank, and its subsidiary companies, [its
associate companies and its joint venture companies and its jointly controlled entities],
which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and
such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based
on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the respective
companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the Guidance Note’).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to
the Consolidated financial statements based on the internal controls over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
internal financial controls with respect to the consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on




Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements were established and
maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with respect to Consolidated financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to Consolidated
financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
respect to Consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
auditors of Subsidiary Companies which are companies incorporated in India in terms of their
reports referred to in Other Matters paragraph ,is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
Consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated . financiai
statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements is
a process designhed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements include those policies and
procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the Consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to Consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
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Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)() of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in so far as it relates to 21 subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For Vinay Sanjay and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: F-112195W

Mumbai, ) >
Dated: 29th December 2025 4

F Partner
M.No. -037274
UDIN: 26037274VLSTBG1250



PART- 1 BALANCE SHEET

MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

(Amount in Thousands )

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
ASSETS
(1) |[Non Current Assets
a_|Property, Plant & Equipment 6 143.66 238.43
b |Capial Work in Progress - -
¢ [Intangible Asseis - -
d [ Financial Assers - -
1y Investments - -
A Loans - -
A Others - -
¢ | Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 3.44 91.45
{ |Other Non Current Assets 8 10.00 10.00
V(2) [Current Assets
a |hvaores - -
b [Financiai Assers
‘1 Investments - -
iy Trade Recereables 9 59.49 56.99
1y Cash & cash Lguivaleats 10 29,588.49 230,739.95
‘v Bank Balances Other 11 635,100.00 272,000.00
A Loans - -
iz Others 12 17,786.93 8,644.82
¢ [Carrent Tax Assets (Net) 13 2,303.31 30,064.32
O [Orher Carrent assets - -
Total Asses 684,995.32 541,845.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a_|Lquire Share capiral 14 210,000.00 210,000.00
b |Other Equity 15 108,982.84 26,634.90
LIABILITIES
(1) [Non Current Liabilities
a |Financial kubilities
1) Borrowings - -
(ii) I'rade Pavables - -
(i) Other financial Liabilities - -
b {Provisions - -
¢ {Deterred Tax Lubilities (Net) -
d [Cher Non Cacrem Linbilities
(2) {Current Liabilives
a |Financial ubiliies
0) Borrowings - =
1) Prade Pavables 16 11,946.10




(i) Other financial | abilites 17 _ 353,126.60 305,211.05
b |Other Current Liabilties 949_7g :
¢ [Provisions 18 39.7¢ ‘
i e 541,845.95
Total Liabilitics and liquity 684,995.32 41,
Significant Accounting Policies 1-5
Notes to accounts 6-d44

Sce accompanying notes to the financial statement

As per our report of even date

For M/S Vinay Sanjay and Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.
Firm Registration Number: 112195W
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PART- 11 STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

{Amount in Thousands )

Particulars Note | For the year ended| For the year ended
31s March 2025 31s March 2024

{; |Revenue from operations - -
(i, [Other Income 19 158,085.42 76,668.92

I |Total Income (i)+(ii) 158,085.42 76,668.92

Expenses

() |Employee Benefits Expenses 20 7,185.91 6,265.59
(i) |Depreciation and amortization expense 21 94.76 61.18
) |Orhers expenses 22 41,194.27 34,554.07

48,474.94 40,880.84

Il | Total Expenses ((i) to (iii))

HI |Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items and tax ([1-1) 109,610.47 35,788.08
IV |Excepuonal Tiems

V| Profit /(lLoss) before tax (111 - 1V) 109,610.47 35,788.08
VI 'lax Expenses:

(1) Current lax 23 27,856.16 9,244.63

(2) Deferred ‘T'ax (7.13) (91.45)
VII [V]) 81,761.45 26,634.90
VIH | Profit /(Loss) [rom discontinued operations before tak - -

LX [Tax Bxpenses of discontinued operations - -

X [1x) - -
X[ | Profit /(Loss) for the period 81,761.45 26,634.90
XIT |Other Comprehensive Income

A g, liems dun will not be reclassified 1o prolit or loss
profit or loss - -
Subtotal (A)
B} () Trems that will be reclassified o profit or loss
or loss
Subtotal (B) - -
X1 |Other Comprehensive Income(A+B)
X1V [Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XI + XIII) 81,761.45 26,634.90
XV |operations)
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Significant Acco unting Policies

Notes to accounts

See nccompanying notes to the financial statement

As per our report of even date

For M/S Vinay Sanjay and Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directots of
MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.

Chartered Accountants

TFirm chistrmion Number: 112195W
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Managing Director

Dirgetor
embership Number : F-37274 }DI}I\: 10198014) (DIN : 09054999)

Place : Mumbai
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UDIN: — \Mhm
UDIN: 28037274VLSTRG 1250 z;:o/dhzi@vji Zate

Sefapany Sccretary
(Mem. No. A22980)

Place : Mumbai

Date :




MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Amount in Thousands )

PARTICULARS

For the year ended 31st March

2025

for the year ended 31st March

2024

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before taxation

Adjusunents for
Depruciation
Interest come
Taxes Paid
Subtotal

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments tog
Increase,” Decrease; in Reserves

“Decreased in Other Long Ferm Liabilicies

S Decrease; m Long Term Provisions

Hoeereasel in Other Currenr fiabilities

Tncrease/ {Deercase) in Other Cureent Financial Liabilities
Increase/ {Decrease) in Shorr Term Provisions
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Fax

(Increasel/Decrease n Other Non Current Asscts

Ancreases’ Decrease in Other Bank Balances and Ferm Deposie

ycrease | Deerease in Other Current assels

fncrease Tieeraase in Trade Receivables

Cash generated from operations
Fess: Taxes paidiner of refunds)

Cash flow before extraoedinary irem
Add/ Less: Lxera-ordinary ireos

Net cash from operating activities (&)

B. Cash flows from investing activitics

Purchase of fixed assets and addition to Capiral Work in
Sale of Asscts

Purchase of Non Current Investments

Interest received (Net of T1IS)

Ner cash used for investing activities ()

C. Cash lows from finuncing activities

Procecds from issuance of Share Application Money Pending
Proceeds from issuance of Shares

hnterest paid

Tncrease in Long 'erm borrowings on account of Inferest
Taterest charged to P & 1.

Decrease in QOther Current Liabilities on account of interest
Net cash from financing activities ( C)

(A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end ol period

94.76
(40,674.81)
(27.856.16)

109,610.47

(68,436.20)

61.18
(9,717.55)
(9,244.63)

35,788.08

(18,901.00)

681.00

11,946.10
47,915.54
939.78

(363,100.00)
9,142.11)
(2.50)

41,174.28

(310,762.19)

305,211.05

(10.00)
(272,000.00)
(8,644.82)
(56.99)

16,887.08

24,499.25

(269,587.92)

(27,761.01)

41,386.32

30,064.32

(269,587.92)

41,386.32

40,674.81

(241,826.91)

40,674.81

(299.60)

9,717.55

11,322.01

9,417.94

210.000.00

(201,152.10)

230,739.95

29,588.49

210,000.00
230,739.95

230,739.95




oot Note:

13 Cash flow is prepared un

2} Cash & Cash Fquivalents include

der Tndirect Method as preseribed in IND AS 7-Cash Flow Statements

ed in the Financial Statements comprise the following.

As per our report el even date

For M/S Vinay Sanjay and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112195W
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r<hip Numbcr: 1:-37274
2 9 DEC 2025
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For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors of

MSEB Solar Agro Power Lid.

Zfmpany Sccretary
(Mem. No. A22980)

Place : Mumbai
Datce :

Abha Shukla
Manging Director
(DIN : 09054999)

Cash & Cash Equivalents As on 31.03.25| Ason 31.03.24
Balance in Cutrent aceounts 29,583.49 230,739.95
Cash - -
Cheques on hand - -
Balance in Fized Deposits (maturity less than 3 months) - -
Balance in Fixed Deposits (maturity less than 12 months more than 3 months) - -
Totul 29,588.49 230,739.95
See accompanying notes o the financial statcment
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MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025

Note 1: Corporate information:

The Government of Mahatashtra vide its General Resolution (GR) No. Sautapra-
2023 /prakra.95/ utja-7 dated 8% May, 2023 had launched the Mukyamantri Saur Krushi Vahini
Yojana 2.0 (MSKVY) with the objective of providing reliable electricity supply to fatmers in
Maharashtra duting the day time. The Scheme is in line with the “Solar Power Mission 2025”,

which can translate into adding the additional solar power capacity of 7,000 MW by December,
2025.

In pursuance of Clause 2.3 of ‘Implementation System and Contents’ of the said GR, the
Government of Maharashtra has specifically permitted incotporation of Special Putpose
Vehicles (SPVs)for the implementation of the MSKVY from time to time. Further, as per Clause
2.2 and 2.3 of the said GR, the Govermment has permitted Tatiff Based Bidding to be carried
out through the SPV Company and then a Purchase Contract to be executed by the SPV with
the Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL).

The MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited has been incorporated as SPV for vatious purposes
contemplated for the implementation of the MSKVY.

Note 2: Principles of Consolidation
Subsidiaries:

The consolidated financial statements have been ptepared in accordance with Ind AS 110
on “Consolidated Financial Statements” on the following principles:

a)  Subsidiaties are entities controlled by the Holding Company. Control exists when
the parent has power over the enti , is exposed, or has rights, to vatiable returms -
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by
using its power ovet the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that
give the ability to ditect relevant activities, those which significantly affect the

¢ entity’s returns. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which conttol commences until
the date on which the conttol ceases.

b)  The consolidated financial statements comprise of the financial statement of the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries referred below. The financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiaties have been consolidated on a line by line
basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, incomes
and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances, intra, group transactions and
untealized profits resulting thete from and are presented to the extent possible, in
the same manner as the Holding Company independent financial statements

©)  In case of foreign subsidiaties, revenue items are converted at the average rates
prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities ate converted at rates prevailing
at the end of the year. Any exchange difference atising on consolidation is
recognized in the “Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”,

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries have been
consolidated using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. When necessaty, adjustments are made to the,P

?\O
O~




financial statements of subsidiaties to bring their accounting policies into line with
the Group’s accounting policies. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used
In consolidation ate drawn up to the same teporting date as that of the Holding
Company i.e., year ended March 31, 2024.

€)  Non-controlling intetests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaties consists of:.

® The amount of equity attributable to non-controlling interests at the date
on which investment in 2 subsidiaty is made; and

o The non-controlling interests’ shate of movements in equity since the
~date parent subsidiary relationship came into existence.

® The profit and other comprehensive income attributable to non-
controlling intetests of subsidiaties are shown separately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity.

The consolidated Financial Statements present the consolidated accounts of MSER Solar
Agro Power Limited and its subsidiaties:

St | | Name of Company Country of | Effective

No Incorporation Ownership Interest
(%) as at 31 March
2024

Subsidiagg

1 * | MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. India 100%

2 * | MSKVYSEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV 11D, India 100%

3 * | MSKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. India 100%

4 * | MSKVY TWENTY FIRST SOLAR SPV LTD. India 100%

Reporting dates of all Subsidiary is March 31,2025.
* Audited by others

Note 3: Basis of breparation:

MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited is fully owned subsidiary of MSEB Holding Company Limited.
Since holding cothpany’s financial statements have been prepared to comply, in all material
aspects, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after refetred to as TND
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act),[the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the other relevant provisions of the Act], the same
compliance has been applied to the subsidiades and accordingly the accounts of MSEB Solar
Agto Power Ltd has been prepated and presented in accotdance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (herein after referred to as TND AS') notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act),[the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The preparation of the financial statements requites management to make estimates and
assumptions. Actual results could vary from these estimates. The accounting estimates ate
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year or in
the year of the revision and future yeats, if the revision affects both current and future yeats
(Refer Note No. 4 on significant accounting judgetnents, estimates and assumption).




The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and liabilittes measured at fair value (tefer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments.) at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

"The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in “Thousand” which is the Company’s
functional curtency.

Note 4: Current and Non-Current classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current
classification.
An asset is cutrent when it is:

® Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consutmed in normal operating cycle,
® Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

® Expected to be realised within twelve months after teporting petiod.
Or

¢ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchangéd or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the teporting petiod.

All other assets ate classified as non-cuttent.

A liability is current when:
® Jtis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
® Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the teporting petiod,
Or

o There is no unconditional tight to defer the settlement of the liability for at twelve
months after the reporting petiod.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-cuttent on net basis.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Note 5: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The prepatation of the Company’s financial statements requites management to make judgements,

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosutes, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
matetial adjustment to the catrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the futute and other key soutces of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial yeat, ate described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing citcumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, tmay change due to
market changes or citcumstances atising that ate beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.




Information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amouats recognized in the financial statements ate as

below:

° Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Propetty, Plant and Equipment and intangible

assets;

° Fair value measurements of financial instruments

* Impaitment of non-financial assets;

* Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligation, key actuarial assumptions;
e Provisions and Contingencies;

* Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets;

* Revenue recognition

Note 6 : Material accounting policies:

1.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

Propetty, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant patts of property, plant and equiptment are
required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognises such parts as separates
component of assets with specific useful lives and provides depreciation over their useful
life. Subsequent costs ate included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as approptiate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the items can be
measuted feliably. The catrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
tepair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of ptofit and loss, when
expenses are incurred.

Capital work in progress includes cost of propetty, plant and equipment under
installation/under development as at the balance sheet date.

Capital Expenditure on tangible assets for research and development is classified under
propetty, plant and equipment and is depreciated on the sate basis as other propetty,
plant and equipment.

Gains and losses arising from retitement or disposal of propetty, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
tetitement or disposal.

Assets are depreciated to the residual values on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives. The assets tesidual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year
end or whenever there are indicators for review, are adjusted prospectively.




When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to Investment property, the
propetty is reclassified as Investment Propetty at its carrying amount on the date of
classification.

Leased Assets

Leasehold lands are amortised over the petiod of lease. Buildings constructed on
leasehold land ate depreciated based on the useful life specified in Schedule IT to the
Companies Act, 2013, whete the lease petiod of land is beyond the life of the building.

In other case, buildings constructed on leasehold lands ate amortised over the primarty
lease of the lands. Free hold land is not depreciated.

Estimated useful lives of the assets ate as follows:

Nature of Assets Years

Leasehold Land 01 to 90
Buildings 01 to 60
Plant &FEquipment ' 01 to'15
Fumiture & Fixtures 01 to 10
Vehicles 01 to 08
Computers 01 to 03

Assets individually costing Rupees five thousand or less are fully depreciated over a
petiod of twelve months from the date available for use.

. Intangible assets:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is
probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company
and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquited intangible assets ate recognised at cost. The
cost of intangible assets that are acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at
the date of acquisition. Following initial tecognition, the intangible assets ate carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisaton and accumulated Impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in Statement of proﬁt and loss on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The
amortisation petiod and the amortisation method for an intangible asset (except
goodwill) is teviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of futute economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted by changing the amortisation petiod or method, as approptiate, and
ate treated as changes in accounting estimates.

a) Goodwill — Goodwill is initially recognised at cost aad is subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

b) Software — Softwate is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquite the respective
license for use and is amortised over the petiod of license, genetally not exceeding
three years.




¢) Licences — Acquired licenses ate initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, licenses are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Amottisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the unexpired petiod of the license and is disclosed under ‘depreciation and
amortisation’. The amortisation period relating to licenses acquited in a business
combination is detertnined ptimarily by reference to the unexpired license period.

d) Other acquired intangible assets — Other intangible assets ate Initially recognised at
cost. Other intangible assets acquired in business combinations are amortised over
the estimated useful lives from the date they are available for use.

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, and intangible
assets not yet put to use ate not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amorttisation are reviewed for
impairment, whenever events or changes in citcumstances include, though ate not
limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues of earnings and material adverse
cha.nées in the economic envitonment.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether thete is an indication that an
asset may be impaited and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment
loss recognised in the previous petods. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is tequited, if any, the Company determines the
recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the catrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their, present valpic }Jsing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curtent market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions atre taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an approptiate valuation model is used. These calculations
ate corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted shate process for publicly  traded
companies or othet available fait value indicators.

Impairments losses of continuing operations, including impairment on Inventoties, ate
recognised in profit and loss section of the statement of profit and loss, except for
propetties previously te-valued with the revaluation taken to Other Comprehensive
Income (the “OCT). For such propetties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the
amount of any previous revaluation.




4. Pre-operative and preliminary expenses:

Expenditure which ate incutred to provide futute economic benefits to an

eaterprise, but no intangible assets ot other assets are acquited or created that can be
recognised, are recognised as expenses when they are incurred.

Accordingly, Administration and other genetal ovethead expenses such as consultancy
fees, formation expenses ate expensed off in the profit and loss account in the year in
which these are incutred and not carried forward to be amortised over a perod.

5. Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand which are short term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which ate subject to insignificant risk of change in value. Balance in Deposit accounts
with. maturity less than 3 months have also been dlassified under Cash and Cash
equivalents and balance of deposits more than three months and less than 12 months
have been classified under “Other Cash and Cash Equivalents”. Outstanding bank
overdrafts are shown within the botrowings in current liabilities in the statement of
financial position and which ate considered an integral patt of the Company’s cash
management.

6. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measuted. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, and
GST and other taxes as applicable for the time being in force. The Company assesses its
revenue arrangements against specific criteria ie. whether it has exposute to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or tendering of services, in
order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. )

a. Interestincome —

For all the financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-beating
financial assets, classified as financial assets as fair value through profit or loss,
interest income is recognised using the effective intetest rate (EIR), which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash teceipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, whete approptiate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in ‘finance income’ in the
income statement.

b. Dividend income —
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s tight to teceive the payment is
established.




c. Lease Income —
Lease agreements where the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset
substantially vest with the lessor are recognised as operating lease. Lease rentals are
recognised on straight line basis as per the terms of the agreements in the statement
of profit and loss.

7. Accounting/ classification of expenditure and income

Ptior Period Items includes items of income ot expenses which atise in the current
petiod as a result of error or omission in the preparation of financial statements of one
ot more ptior yeats. These are separately accounted for either by —

a) Restating the comparative amounts for the ptior period(s) in which the error
occuttred, ot

(b) When the etror occurred before the eatliest prior period(s) presented, restating the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for that petiod, so that the financial
statements are presented as if the etror had never occurred. '

Only where it is impracticable to determine the cumulative effect of an error on ptior
periods, then such effect is corrected prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

8. Employee benefits:

The Company’s post-employment benefits include defined benefit plan and defined
contribution plans. The Company also provides other benefits in the form of deferted
compensation and compensated absences.

Under the defined benefit retitement plan, the Company provides retitement obligation
in the form of Gratuity. Under the plan, a lump sum payment is made to eligible
employees at retitement or termination of employment based on respective employee
salaty and yeats of experience with the Company.

For defined benefit retirement plahs, the difference between the fait value of the plan
assets and the present value of the plan liabilities is recognised as an asset or liability in
the statement of financial position. Scheme Liabilities are determined by actuarial
valuation, petformed by an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. Plan assets are assets that are held by 2 long-term employee
benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies.

All the expenses excluding re-measutements of the net defined benefits liability (asset), in
tespect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the profit and loss as incurred. Re-
measurements, comptising actuarial gains and losses and the retutn on the plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net intetest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)), ate
recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a cottesponding debit
or credit to retained eatnings through other comprehensive income in the petiod in
which they occur. Re-measurements ate not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent
petiods.




10.

Compensated Absence

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using
projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/ availed as a
result of the unused entiflement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Gains
and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are
tecognized in othetr comprehensive income.

The amount charged to the income statement in respect of these plans is included within
operating costs.

The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are tecognised in Statement
of profit and loss as they fall due. The Company has no further obligations under these
plans beyond its petiodic conttibutions.

Bortowing costs:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Botrowing costs ditectly attributable to the
acquisition, construction ot production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
petiod of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of the respective assets. All othet botrowing costs are expensed in the petiod in which
they occur.

Leases:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ effective from 1st April, 2019, using the
modified tetrospective method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases with
the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial application (Ist April, 2019).
Accordingly, previous period information has not been testated. The Company’s lease
asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings and Plant & Machinery.
The Company assesses whethet a contract is ot contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whethet: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
petiod of the lease and (i) the Company has the right to ditect the use of the asset. At
the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease atrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-tetm leases) and
leases of low value assets. For these shott-term and leases of low value assets, the
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on 2 straight-line basis
ovet the tetm of the lease. The right-of-use assets ate initially recognised at cost, which
comptises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
ot ptiot to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
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impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The Jease lability is initially measured at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the inctemental botrowing tates. The lease
liability is subsequently re-measured by incteasing the cattying amount to teflect interest
on the lease liability, reducing the catrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. A
lease liability is re-measured upon the occuttence of cettain events such as a change in
the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The re-
measurement normally also adjusts the leased assets. Lease liability and ROU asset are
separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments ate classified as financing
Cash Flows.

Earnings per share:

The Company’s eatnings per share (EPS) ate determined based on the net profit
attributable to the shateholders of the Company. Basic earnings per shate is computed
using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eatnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common
and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share
options (using the treasuty stock method for options), except where the result would be
anti- dilutive.

. Taxes on Income:

a. Curtent income tax
Cutrent income tax assets and liabiliies for the current and ptior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Company petiodically evaluates positions taken in the tax teturns
with respect to which. applicable tax tegulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where applicable. ¢

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability/Asset is provided on temporary differences at the reporting

date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes. Defetred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary difference, except —

° When the deferred tax liability atises from the initial recognition of goodwill
ot of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit/ (tax loss).

° In respect of taxable tempotary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaties, associates and interest in joint ventures, where the timing of the
teversal of the temporary difference can be conttolled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will be not reverse in the foreseeable future.




Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temportary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporaty differences and the carry
forward of unused tax ctedits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

® When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference atises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit/ (tax loss).

® In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will revetse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available which the
temporaty differences can be utilised.

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each teporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or patt of the deferred tax asset to be ulised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are tecognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferted tax assets and Hlabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in cotrelation to the underdying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities ate offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off cutrent incomes tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

13. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

a. General — Provisions ate recognised when the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a tesult of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resoutces embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
teliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some ot all of a provision to be teimbursed, the
reimbutsement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense telating to any provision is presented in the income
statement net of any reimbursements.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions ate discounted using a
cutrent pre-tax rate that reflects, where approptate, the risks specific to the lability.
Where discounting is used, the inctease in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.




b. Contingencies — Contingencies liabilities are recognised at their fair value only, if
they wete assumed as part of 2 business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised. However, when the realisation of income is vittually certain, then the
related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.
Information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. The same applies to contingent assets where an inflow of
econotmic benefits is probable.

14. Fair value measurement:

The Company measutes financial instruments such as detivatives and certain
investments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. '

Fair Value is the price that would be teceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market patticipants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the ttansaction to sell the asset or
transfer the lability takes place either: '

® In the principal market for the asset or Lability
Or

® In the absence of a principal martket, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or Hability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
patticipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measutement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
patticipant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. '

The Company uses valuation techniques that are approptiate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements ate categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measutement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets of
liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly ot indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measutement is unobsetvable,




For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on 2 recutring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occutred between levels in the hierarchy by
te- assessing categotisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting petiod.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the natute, characteristics and isks of the asset or liability
and the level of the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

. Financial Instruments:

(i) Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a patty
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are
recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade teceivables which are
initially measured at transaction ptice. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial labilities, which are not at fair
value through profit or loss, are added/deducted to the fair value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs related to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities, that
are fair valued through profit or loss, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Account.

Subsequent measurement
For purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified into two broad
categories:

® Tinancial assets at fair valie

® Financial assets at amortised cost

Whete assets ate measured at fair value, gains and losses ate cither recognised entirely in
the statemeat of profit and loss (Le. fair value through profit & loss), or recognised in
othet comptehensive income (L.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost
(net of any write down for Impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair value
through profit ot loss under the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the
financial asset to collect the conttactual cash flows (tather than to sell the instrument
ptor to its contractual maturity to tealise its fair value changes).

Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that ate solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value
through other comptehensive income unless the asset is designed at fair value through
profit ot loss under the fair value option.




© DBusiness model test: The finandial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

° Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. :

Even if an instrument meets the two tequitements to be measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income, 2 financial asset is measured at fair value
through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an ‘accounting mismatch’) that
would otherwise arise from measuting assets ot liabilities or tecognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All equity investment ate measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for
which the entity has elected to present value changes in ‘othet comprehensive income’.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an itrevocable election is made at initial
recognition to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only
dividend income recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or where applicable, 2 patt of a financial asset or patt of group of
similat financial assets) is ptimarily detecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when: ‘
o ‘The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
¢ The Company has transferred its tights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third patty under a ‘pass-through’ artangement and either:
2) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
b) The Company has neither transfetred nor retained substantially all the rsks and
tewards of the asset, but has transfetted control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its tights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through atrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the fisks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, the
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
tights and obligations that the Company has retained.




Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measuted at the lower of the original catrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be requited to repay.

Investment in associates, joint ventute and subsidiaries

The Company has accounted for its investment in subsidiaties and associates, joint
ventute at cost net of accumulated impairment loss, if any in the financial statements.

On disposal of the Investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is chatged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

'The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the
following:

® Financial assets measured at amortised cost;

® Financial assets measured at fair value through othet comprehensive income

EVTOCI)

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
® the 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from
those default events on the financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the repotting date); or
e full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).

The Company follows simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:

® Trade receivables or contract revenue receivable; and

o  Alllease receivables

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision mattix to determine impairment loss allowance on the
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the history observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whethet there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit tisk has not increased significantly, 12- months ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial tecognition,
hen Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-months
ECL.




16.

17.

For assessing increase ctedit fisk and impaitment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk chatacteistics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

(ii) Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payable, maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the cartying amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these
instruments.

De-recognition

A financial lability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is dischatged
ot cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the
respective catrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial labilities ate offset and the net atount is reported in
the balance sheet if thete is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and thete is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash flow statement

Cash flow statement is prepated in accotdance with the indirect method presctibed in
Iadian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on “Statement of Cash Flow’. Fot the putpose of
the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of cash, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

New and amended standards:

Ministry of Cotporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. As on 31 March 2025, no new standards or amendments are issued o
notified.
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Note 6
CONSOLIDATED PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMI (A.lnt in Thousands)

Particulars Computets Total

Petiod ended 31st March 2024
Gross Carrying Amount '

Opening Gross Carrying Amount -
Additions 300 300
Adjustments - -

Disposal/Transfers ‘ L i ~
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 300 | 300

Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment

Opening Accumulated Depreciation -

Depreciation Charge during the Period 61 61

Adjustments - -
Disposal/Transfers - -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation and '
Impairment 61 61

Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March 20 238 238
Year ended 31st March 2025
Gross Cartying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount 299.60 299.60
Additions : - ' -
Adjustments - -
Disposal/Transfers ) - -
Closing Gross Catrying Amount 299.60 299,60

Accumulated Depreciation and

Impairment
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 61.18 61.18
Depreciation Charge during the Period 94.76 94.76

Adjustments - -

Disposal/Transfers - -

Closing Accumulated Depreciation and
Impairment 155.94 155.94

Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March 20 143.66 143.66




3 Consolidated Notes to Accounts:

Note 7 : Deferred Tax Liability/ Asset (net)
(Amt in Thousands .)

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 | As at 31" March 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)
Timing difference on account of WDV of 68.21 112.66
Fixed Assets
Total (A) 68.21 112.66
Deferred Tax Assets (B)
Others 460.81
Total (B) 68.21 -
Timing Difference(B-A) 68.21 348.15
Rate of Tax
Defetred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) as at 7.13 91.45
Period End
Deferred Tax Chatged/ (Credif)to 7.13 91.45
Profit and Loss

During the year under review, the company has made reassessment of histotical pre-tax earnings,
future probable taxable profits and came to the conclusion that deferred tax asset / lability
needs to be recognised.

Deferred Tax Movement

Particulars As at Recognized in As at
1 April Adjustme 31st
2024 P&L . nt March2025
Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated depreciation for tax putposes - - - -

Deferred tax assets

Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 91.45 95.15
(7.13) 3.44
91.45 - - -
" Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net) 91.45 (7.13) 95.15 3.44

Note 8 : Other Non-Current Assets

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 As at 31 March
Match 2025 2024

Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good - -

Other loans and advances
Other Deposits 10.00 100.00
Total 10.00 10.00




Note 9 : Trade Receivables:-

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2025
Less 6
Than 6 | Months Motre
Month | -1Year 1-2 2-3 than 3
S Year | Yeats | Years | Total
i) Undisputed Ttade Receivables -
Unsecured Consideted Good 2.50 - 56.99 - -1 59.49
1i) Undisputed Ttade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Doubtful - ‘- - - - -
iif) Disputed Ttade Receivables -
Unsecured Consideted Good - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
Total 2.50 | 5699 : -| 59.49
Noté 9 : Trade Receivables:-
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2024
Less 6 Mote

Than 6 | Months 1-2 2-3 than 3
Months | -1Year | Year | Years | Yeats | Total

1) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Good 56.99 - - - -1 56.99

1ii) Disputed T'rade Receivables -
Unsecured Consideted Good - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Doubtful - - - - -

56.99

M 56.99 - - - -
Note 10 : Cash & Cash Equivalents
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March 2025 | As at 31 March 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalent
a. Balances with banks
In Cutrent Accounts 29,588.49 30,739.95
In Deposit Accounts with original - A 2,00,000.00

maturity less than 3 months
b. Cash on Hand -

c. Cheques on Hand - ~
Total 29,588.49 2,30,739.95




Note 11 : Bank Balances QOthers

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulats As at 31" March As at 31°
2025 Mazrch 2024
Cash and Cash Equivalent
In Deposit Accounts with original maturity of mote than 3 6,35,100.00 2,72.,000.00
months but less than 12 months
Total 6,35,100.00 2,72,000.00
Note 12 : Other Cutrent Assets
(Amt in Thousands)
Patticulars As at 31" As at 31%
March 2025 Match 2024
Interest Accrued and due on fixed deposits 17,786.93 8,644.82
Total 17,786.93 8,644.82
Note 13 : Current Tax Assets (Net)
(Amt in Thousands)
As at 31 As at 31
(Amt in Thousands) Particulars March, 2025 | Match, 2024
Income Tax paid for A.Y. 2024-25 ( Net) - 28.477.79
GST 2,303.31 1,586.52
Total 2,303.31 30,064.32
Note 14 : Share Capital °
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March,2025 As at 31 March,2024
Number of Number of | Amount
shates Amount shates
A) Authotised Share Capital
25,000,000 Equity Shares (hereafter
veferred to asq‘shtayftes’) of & 10 each 2,50,00,000 2,50,000.00 | 2,50,00,000 | 2,50,000.00
B) Issued, Subscribed & Paid
up Capital
21,000,000 Equity Shares (hereafter
referred to as ‘shares’) of Rs. 10 each 2,10,00,000 2,10,000.00 | 2,10,00,000 | 2,10,000.00
fully paid up.
Total 2,10,00,000 2,10,000.00 | 2,10,00,000 | 2,10,000.00
a) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of the Capital
Particulars As at 31 March,2025 As at 31 Match,2024
% of Total % of Total
Name of the Shateholder No. of shares Paid up No. of shares Paid up
held Cavi held .
apital Capital
%ISDERE dedm% Company 2,10,00,000 100% 2,10,00,000 100%
2,10,00,000 100% | 2,10,00,000 100%
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b) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
reporting year/period:

Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March,2025 As at 31 March,2024
No. of Shares No. of Shares

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,10,00,000

Shares issued during the period 2,10,00,000

Shares bought back during the period - -

Shares outstanding at the end of the period 2,10,00,000 2,10,00,000

¢) Details of Issued, Subsctibed & paid up capital during the period : -

d) Rights, Preferences and testrictions attaching to each class of shares: The Company has only
one class of Equity Shares having pat value of Rs. 10 per share.

¢) Shares in respect of each class in the Company held by its Holding Company ot its ultimate
holding Company including shares: MSEB Holding Company Litnited

f) Shates resetved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or
disinvestment, including the terms and amounts: Not applicable

g Aggregate number of bonus shates issued, shares issued for consideration other cash and
shares bought back during the petiod of five years immediately preceding:

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

1) Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up Bonus NIL
NIL

Shares

i)Equity Shares issued for consideration other NIL NIL

than cash

h) Terms of any securities convertible into equity shares issued along with the earliest date of
conversion in descending order starting from the farthest such date : Not Applicable

1) Calls unpaid (showing aggregate value of calls unpaid by ditectors and officers): Not
Applicable :

j) Forfeited Shates (amount originally paid up) :Not Applicable

k) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promotets as on 31% March 2025 :

St. | Promoter’s Name No. of shares | % of total| % of Change

No. shares - during the Year

1 MSEB Holding Company Limited | 2,10,00,000 100% 100%
(Along with the Nominee)

Note 15 : Other Equity

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2025 | As at 31 March, 2024
(i) Retained Earnings
Opening balance 26,634.90 -
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the petiod 81,761.45 26,634.90
Closing balance 1,08,982.84 26,634.90
Total 1,08,982.84 26,634.90




Note 16 : Trade Payahle

Trade Payables ageing schedule

Ageing schedule of Ttade Payables outstanding as at 31st March 2025:

Patrticulars Not Outstanding for following periods from due date | Total
Due of payment
Less Than1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More
Year than
3Years
(i) MSME -
(i) Others - 11,946.10 11,946.10
(i) Disputed | - -
dues - MSME
(iii) Disputed | - -
dues — MSME
Total 11,946.10 11,946.10
Ageing schedule of Trade Payables outstanding as at 31st March 2024:
Particulars Not Outstanding for following periods from due date | Total
Due of payment
Less Than1 | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years | More
Year than
3Yeats
(i) MSME. -
i) Others - - -
(i) Disputed | - -
dues — MSME
(1) Disputed | - -
dues - MSME
Total - -
Note 17 : Other Curtent Financial Liabilities
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March 2025 | As at 31* March 2024
a) EMD Collected 3,08,168.10 2,61,700.00
EMD Collected More than 1 Year 6,500.00 -
b) Inter Company Payables
MSEB Holding Company Ltd 36,504.65 41,558.05
) Other Payables
Statutory Dues Payable 1,579.80 1,440.00
d) Expenses Payable 374.05 513.00
Total 3,53,126.60 3,05,211.05
Note 18 : Provisions
(Amt in Thousands)

Particulars

As at 31°° March 2025

As at 31* March 2024

Provisions of Tax (Net A.Y. 2025-26)

939.78

939.78
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Note 19 : Other Income

(Amt in Thousands)
Patrticulars For the period ended | For the period ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024
Interest on Fixed Deposits with bank 40,674.81 9,717.55
Processing Fees 27,318.76 62,639.71
Tender Fees 475.00 4.296.19
Misc Income - 15.48
Interest on Income Tax Refund 1,408.37 -
Capital Gain sale of Shares 88,200.00 -
Sundry Credit Balance Written Off 8.48 -
Total 1,58,085.42 76,668.92
Note 20 : Employees Benefits Expense
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period ended | For the period ended
31" Mazch 2025 31" March 2024
Salaries 7,185.91 6,265.59
Total 7,185.91 6,265.59
Note 21 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period ended | For the period ended
31" March 2025 31" Match 2024
Depreciation and amortisation expense ' 94.76 61.18
Total 94.76 61.18
Note 22 : Other Expenses
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period ended For the period ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024
Administrative and General
Expenses
Professional Fees 35,554.52 29,717.09
Statutory Auditors 197.20 370.00
Out of Pocket Expenses 4.25 -
Printing and Stationery 16.90 44.70
Fees and Subscription 143.80 2,597.63
Meeting Expenses 139.20 23.26
Bank Charges & Commission 0.65 2.62
Advertisement 2,658.33 193.62
Vehicle Hiring Charges 1,531.15 1,040.91
Office Expenses - 5.05
Registration Fees 15.81 156.23
Rates and taxes - 4.54
Formation Expenses - 398.32
Interest on Income Tax 310.36 -
-Prior Period Expenses 601.02 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts 21.08 -
Total 41,194.27 34,554.07
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Payment to statutory auditors Fog;ﬁig;i;ig;? ed For;f&g:g‘: czioezl:ded
As auditor
Statutory audit fees 197.20 370.00
Tax audit fees -
Out of pocket expenses 4.25 -
Total 201.45 370.00
Note 23 : Tax Expenses
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period ended As on 31" March 24
31" March 25
Cutrent Tax 27,856.16 9,244.63
Defetred Tax (7.13) (91.45)
27,849.03 9,153.18
Note 24 : Contingent Liabilities & Capital Commitments:
' (Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March 25 As at 31" March 24
a) Claims not acknowledged as debts
(©) Sales Tax under appeals -~ -

(i) Income Tax under appeals

b) Capital Commitments

‘Note 25 : Leases (IND AS 116)

In the absence of applicability of Lease, lease disclosure in accordance with Ind AS-116 has not

been provided.

Note 26 : Employee Benefit (IND AS 19)
4 |

Curfently there ate two employees with the company who ate above 60 yeats age. They ate not
eligible of any employee benefit. In absence of employees benefit, disclosute in accordance with

Ind AS-19 has not been provided.

Note 27 : Segment Reporting (IND AS 108)

The company is a single—seément company with the object of holding shares in the subsidiaties
on behalf of GOM. Hence additional disclosute undet Indian Accounting Standard 108 is not

required.




Note 28 : Related Party Disclosure (IND AS 24)

a) Subsidiaty Companies

Sr | List of related parties ovet which control exists Relationship
No.
1 | MSEB Holding Company Ltd. Holding Company
2 | MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Wholly owned Subsidiary Company
3 | MSKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Wholly owned Subsidiary Company
4 | MSKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Wholly owned Subsidiary Company
5 | MSKVY TWENTY FIRST SOLAR SPV LTD. Wholly owned Subsidiary Company
6 e e Wholly owned subsidiary of MSEB
Maharashtra State Electricity Disttibution Co. Ltd. Holding Co Ltd.
7 . . Wholly owned subsidiaty of MSEB
Maharashtra State Electticity Transmission Co. Ltd. Holding Co Ltd.
8 | Maharashtra State Power Generation Co. Ltd. Wholly owned subsidiary of MSEB
Holding Co Ltd.

The above disclosure is based on representation received from the Company. In view of the
exemption given in Para 25 of the Indian Accounting Standard, the company is not required to
disclose transactions with its subsidiaries since they are state-controlled enterprises.

b) Key Management Personnel:

Smt. Abha Shukla Managing Director

Shri. Balasaheb Baburao Thite Director

Shri. Anil Nagendra Kalekar Ditector

Shri. Subodh Rameshtaviji Zare Company Sectetary

Smt. Rupali Bhaskar Gole CFO (upto 18/02/2025)

No Loans or advances in the nature of loans have been granted to promotors, directors, KMP
and the related parties, either severally, or jointly with any other person, that ate repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms ot petiod of repayment.

) Details of Transactions with Holding Company

(Amt in Thousands)
For the period ended | For the period ended 31

Particulars 31" March 2025 March 2024
Employee Cost 7,185.91 6,265.59
Advertisement Expenses 2,658.33 193.62
Fees and Subscription 55.30 2,551.73
Meeting Expenses 139.20 i 23.36
Office Expenses - 5.00
Printing and Stationary 16.90 3.16
Professional Fees 11,369.47 29,541.92
Registration Fees 15.81 156.23
Vehicle Hire Chatges 1,531.15 1,040.91

22,972.07 39,781.52




d) Details of Transactions with Subsidiaty Companies:
Expenses incurred on behalf of subsidiary corapanies

For the period ended | For the period ended 31
Name of the Company 31* March 2025 March 2024
MSKVY Fitst Solar SPV Limited - 32.99
MSKVY Second Solar SPV Limited - 32.99
MSKVY Thitd Solar SPV Limited - 32.99
MSKVY Foutth Solar SPV Limited -- 32.99
MSKVY Fifth Solar SPV Limited - 32.99
MSKVY Sixth Solat SPV Limited - 32.99
MSKVY Saptam Solar SPV Limited -~ 32.99
MSKVY Eight Solar SPV Limited - 32.99
MSKVY Ninth Solar SPV Limited - 31.98
MSKVY Tenth Solar SPV Limited -~ 30.18
MSKVY Eleventh Solar SPV Limited -~ 30.18
MSKVY Twelfth Solar SPV Limited - 30.78
MSKVY Thitteenth Solar SPV Limited - 30.48
MSKVY Chaturdash Saur SPV Limited - 30.48
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited - 30,18
MSKVY Sixteenth Solat SPV Limited 17.30 30.48
MSKVY Seventeen Solar SPV Limited 17.30 20.98
MSKVY Eighteenth Solar SPV Limited 17.30 27.58
MSKVY Twentieth Solar SPV Limited -- 21.08
MSKVY Twenty First Solar SPV Limited 23.20 15.43
75.10 593.68
e) In respect of MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPV LIMITED
Related Party Disclosure (IND AS 24)
a) Subsidiary Companies
St | List of related parties over which Relationship
No | control exists
1 | MSEB HOLDING COMPANY LTD. Parent Holding Company
2 | MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LID. Holding Company
¢ 3 | MSKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Litd.)
4 MSKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR SPV L'TD Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)
5 MSKVY TWENTY FIRST SOLAR SPV LTD Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)

The above disclosure is based on tepresentation received from the Company. In view of the
exemption given in Para 25 of the Indian Accounting Standard, the company is not required to

disclose transactions with its subsidiaties since they are state-controlled entetptises.

Name of related party

Relationship

Maharashtra State Electticity Disttibution Co. Ltd.

Enterprise over which Key Management

Maharashtra State Electticity Transmission Co.

Ltd.

Personnel, Relatives of Key Management

Petsonnel etc are able to exercise

Maharashtra State Power Generation Co. Lid.

significant influence.

Aurangabad Power Company Ltd

Mahagenco Ash Management Services Litd.

Mahaguj Collieties Ltd

\Dhopave Coastal Power Ltd

0
Ny
oy




b) Key Management Personnel:

Subodh Rameshravji Zare Ditectot

Ashok Ananda Phalnikar Director (upto 14-05-2024)

Rakesh Raghunath Janbandhu Director (From 14-05-2024 to 25-12-2024)
Anil Nagendra Kalekar Director (From 25-12-2024)

No Loans or advances in the nature of loans have been granted to promotors, ditectors, KIMP
and the related parties, either severally, or jointly with any othet petson, that are repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or petiod of tepayment.

©) Duﬁ.ng the year expenses amounting to Rs.17.30 Thousands have been borne by the
Holding Company MSEB Solar Agto Power Limited.

f) In respect of MSKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV LIMITED
a) Subsidiary Companies

Sr | List of related parties over which Relationship

No | control exists .
1 | MSEB HOLDING COMPANY LID. Parent Holding Company
2 | MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LTD. Holding Company
3 | MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPVLTD Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)
4 | MSKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Litd.)
5 | MSKVY TWENTY FIRST SOLAR SPV LTD Fellow Subsidiaty (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)

The above disclosure is based on representation received from the Company. In view of the
exemption given in Para 25 of the Indian Accounting Standard, the company is not required to
disclose transactions with its subsidiaries since they are state-controlled enterptises.

Name of related party Relationship

Mahatashtra State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd. | Enterptise over which Key Management
Maharashtra State Electticity Transmission Co. Ltd. | Personnel, Relatives of Key Management
Maharashtra State Powet Generation Co. Litd. Petrsonnel etc ate able to exetcise
Aurangabad Power Company Ltd significant influence. - '
Mahagenco Ash Management Setvices Ltd.
Mahaguj Colliaries Ltd

Dhopave Coastal Power Ltd

b) Key Management Personnel:

Nikhil Pralhad Meshram Director
Anil Nagendra Kalekar Director (Upto 25-12-2024)
Subodh Rameshravji Zare Director (Upto 25-12-2024)

No Loans ot advances in the nature of loans have been granted to promotors, ditectors, KIMP
and the related parties, e1ther severally, or ]omtly with any other person, that ate repayable a

*9&' v‘°>\’
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c) Duting the year expenses amounting to Rs.17.30 Thousands have been bore by the
Holding Company MSEB Solat Agto Power Limited.

g) In respect of MSKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR SPV LIMITED

a) Subsidiaty Companies

St | List of related parties over which Relationship
No. | control exists
1 | MSEB Holding Company Ltd. Parent Holding Company
2 | MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd. Holding Company
3 | MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. | Fellow Subsidiaty (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)
4 | MSKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV | Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Litd.)
LTD.
5 | MSKVY TWENTY FIRST SOLAR SPV | Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agto Power Ltd.)
LTD.

The above disclosure is based on tepresentation received from the Company. In view of the
exemption given in Para 25 of the Indian Accounting Standard, the company is not requited to
disclose transactions with its subsidiaries since they are state-controlled enterprises.

Name of related party Relationship

Maharashtra State Electticity Distribution Co. Ltd. | Enterprise over which Key Management
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. | Personnel, Relatives of Key Management
Ltd. Personnel etc are able to exercise
Mahatashtta State Power Generation Co. Ltd. significant influence.

Aurangabad Powetr Company Ltd
Mahagenco Ash Management Services Ltd.
Mahaguj Colliaties Litd

Dhopave Coastal Power Ltd

b) Key Management Personnel:

Nikhil Pralhad Meshtam Ditector
Anil Nagendra Kalekar Director (Upto 25-12-2024)
Subodh Rameshravji Zate Director (From 25-12-2024)

No Loans or advances in the nature of loans have been granted to promotors, ditectors, KMP
and the related patties, either severally, ot jointly with any other person, that are repayable on
demand or without specifying any tetms ot petiod of repayment.

c) Duting the year expenses amounting to Rs.17.30 thousands have been bore by the Holding
Company MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited.




h) In respect of MBKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV LIMITED

a) Subsidiary Companies

Sr | List of related parties over which Relationship
No. | control exists
1 | MSEB Holding Company Ltd. Parent Holding Company
2 | MSEB Solar Agto Power Litd. Holding Company
3 | MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. | Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd)
4 | MSKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV | Fellow Subsidiary (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)
LTD.
5 MTSDKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR SPV | Fellow Subsidiaty (of MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.)
LTD.

The above disclosute is based on representation feceived from the Company. In view of the
exemption given in Para 25 of the Indian Accounting Standard, the company is not required to
disclose transactions with its subsidiaries since they ate state-controlled enterprises.

Name of related party Relationship

Mahatashtra State Electricity Distribution Co. Ltd. | Enterprise over which Key Management
Maharashtra State Electricity Transmission Co. | Petsonnel, Relatives of Key Management
Ltd. Petsonnel etc are able to exetcise significant
Maharashtra State Power Genetation Co. Ltd. - | influence.

Aurangabad Power Company Ltd |
Mahagenco Ash Management Setvices Ltd.
Mahaguj Colliaties Ltd

Dhopave Coastal Power Lid

b) Key Management Personnel:

Nikhil Pralhad Meshtam Director
Anil Nagendra Kalekar Director (Upto 25-12-2024)
Subodh Rameshtaviji Zare Ditector (From 25-12-2024)

No Loans or advances in the nature of loans have been granted to promotots, directors, KIMP
and the related parties, either severally, or jointly with any othet petson, that are repayable on
demand or without specifying any tetms ot petiod of repayment.

¢) During the year expenses amounting to Rs.17.30 Thousands have been borne by the
Holding Company MSEB Solat Agro Power Limited.

Note 29 : Expenditute on Corporate Social Responsibility: -

The Provisions of Section 135 regarding CSR are not applicable to the Company for FY 2024-
25. .




Note 30 : Earnings per share as per (IND AS 33)

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March 2025 |  As at 31" March 2024
Profit/ (Loss) after taxes 81,761.45 26,634.90
Weighted Average Number of equity 21,000.00 86,16,438
shares outstanding
Face Value of Equity Shares Rs/share 10 10
Earnings per share (basic) Rs/Share 3.89 3.09
Earnings per share (diluted) Rs/Shate 3.89 3.09

Note 31: Elimination of Related Patty T'ransactions

Related Party Transactions with tespect to Assets and Liabilities have been eliminated in the

consolidated accounts balances as under:

Patt I — Elimination of Related Patty Transactions for the yeat 2024-2025 with respect to Assets

and Liabilities.

)
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Part B : Associate Company of Subsidiary : Nil

Note 32 : Additional Information as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013 of enterprises consolidated as subsidiaty/associate

St | Name of the Net Assets i.e. Total | Share in  Profit | Share in  Other | Share in  Total
. | Enterprise Assets minus Total | /(Loss) Comprehensive Comprehensive
N Liabilities Income Income
o (Refer Note 1)
As % of [Rs in|{As % of [Rs in|As % of |Rs in| As % of | Rs in
Consolid | Thousan | Consolid | Thousan | Consolid | Thousa | Consolid | Thousan
ated Net | ds ated Net | ds ated Net | nds ated Net | ds
Assets Assets Assets Assets
A | Holding Company
1 | MSEB Solar | 99.81% | 1,09,16 | 100.06 1,09,16 { 0.00% - 100.06 1,09,16
Agl'O Power 1.96 % 1.96 % 1.96
Limited
Indian Subsidiary ‘
MSKVY 0.04% 48.10 -0.02% - - -0.02%
SIXTEENT (17.29) (17.29)
H SOLAR
SPV LTD
MSKVY 0.04% 45.66 -0.02% - - -0.02%
SEVENTEE ) (17.29) (17.29)
NTH
SOLAR SPV
LTD.
MSKVY 0.05% 57.17 -0.02% - -0.02%
EIGHTEEN (17.29) (17.29)
TH SOLAR
SPV L.TD
MSKVY 0.05% 57.59 -0.02% - - -0.02%
TWENTY (17.29) (17.29)
FIRST
f SOLAR SPV
LTD

Note 33 : Financial Instruments — Accounting, Classification and Fair Value
Measurements

The f:;n'r values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing patties, other than in a
forced ot liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions wete used to estimate the fair value.

1) Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other shott-term receivables, trade
receivables, trade payables, othet current liabilities, shott term loans from banks and othet
financial institutions approximate theit carrying amounts largely due to the short-terms .
matutities of these instruments. ‘




2) Financial instruments with fixed and variables interest rates ate evaluated by the Company
based on parametets such as interest and individual credit worthiness of the counterpatty.
Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these
receivables.

The Company uses the following hieratchy for the determining and disclosing the fair value
of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) process in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the tecorded
fait value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

. Carrtying value Fair value
Particulars STMar. 2025 31-Mar-2024 ,
Financial assets ‘
Measured at amortised cost

Trade receivables (tefet note no 9) 59.49 56.99
Cash and cash equivalents (tefer note 10) 29,588.49 2,30,739.95
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(refer note 11) 6,35,100.00 2,72,000.00
Other financial assets (tefer note12 ) 17,786.93 8,644.,82
Total 6,82,534.91 5,11,441.76
Financial liabilities
Measured at fair value through profit or loss - -
Borrowings
Measured at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities (tefer note 17) 3,53,126.60 3,05,211.05
Total ' 3,53,126.60 3,05,211.05

Note 34 : Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its
business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Managing
Board.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future eatnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result
from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a finandal instrument may
change as a result of changes in the intetest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices
and other market changes that affect matket risk sensitive instruments. Matket risk is attributable
to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign
cutrency receivables, payables and loans and borrowings.




Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as the respective reporting dates.

Foreign curtency risk

The Company is not exposed to foteign currency risk at the respective reporting dates.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations
as agreed. To manage this, the Company petriodically assesses the financial teliability of
customers, taking into account the financial condition, cutrent economic trends, and analysis of
historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considets the probability of default upon initial recl)grﬁdon of asset and whether
there has been 2 significant inctease in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each
reporting petiod. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the company
compates the risk of a default occurting on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as the date of initial recognition. It consists teasonable and supportive forwarding looking
information such as:

1) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.

2) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty.

3) Financial or economic conditions that ate expected to cause 2 significant change to the
counterpatty’s ability to meet its obligations.

4) Significant increases in ctedit tisk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty

5) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of
third party guarantees or credit enhancements.

Financial assets are written off when there is no teasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company categorises 2 loan
ot receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payménts greater than 2 yeats
due. Whete loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt the receivable due, When recoveries ate made, these ate
trecognised in profit or loss.

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the year.
Liquidity risk

Liquid tisk is defined as the tisk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time ot ata reasonable price.

The Company is not exposed to liquidity risk at the respective teporting date




Note 35: Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide maximum returns for shareholders

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, securities
premium and all other equity reserves atttibutable to the equity holdets.

The Company monitotrs capital using debt to equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total
equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loan and borrowings, less cash

and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations. As on date the company does not have

any borrowings.
(Amount in ‘000)
Particulars 31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Borrowings - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 29,219.78 2,28,642.55
Net debt -29,219.78 - -2,28,642.55 |-
Equity (refer note 14 & 15) 1,09,161.96 27,331.36
Geating Ratio - -

Note 36 : Additional Regulatory Information

Ratio 2024-25
Particulars Numerator Denominator Numerator | Denominator | 2024-25
(a) Curtent Ratio | Total Curtent | Total Current
(in times) Assets Liabilities 684838.22 366012.48 1.87
(b) Return on ?;:f}t/(lloaf)l Average Equity
Equity Ratio (in |}, efer;y:e % | (Shateholder's 81761.45 159491.42 0.51
Times) dividend (if any) Funds)
(©) Trade Average .
Receivables Net Credit Sales | Accounts 27793.76 0 -
tutnover ratio Receivable
(d) Net capital Average
furnover ratio Net Sales Wo I:king capi tal 27793.76 159412.87 0.17
() Net profit| Net Profit After | \ro\ gres 81761.45 27793.96 2.94
ratio Tax
Capital
Employed =
(® Return on Tangible Net
Capital employed | EEIT Wb e Tonl | 10961047 318982.84 0.34
Debt + Defetted
Tax Liability
(g)Return on
investment
(Measured in terms | Net Profit after | Avg. Total 81761.45 349497 66 0.24
of Retumms on | Taxzes Assets
Total Assets of the
hCompany)




Ratio Previous Year 2023-24

Particulars

Numerator Denominator Numerator | Denominator | 2023-24
(a) Current Ratio | Total Curtent | Total  Curtent
(in times) Aot Lisbilities 541,506.07 |  3,05211.05 1.77
(b) Return on ?r:fgﬁ/(l.o:rs)l s Average Equity
Equity Ratio (in | o o YooF % | (Ghareholder's | 26,634.90 1,18,317.45 0.23
Times) Preference Funds)
dividend (if any)
(o) Trade Average
Receivables Net Credit Sales | Accounts 66,935.90 28.49 2349.12
tutnovet ratio Receivable
(d) Net -capital Average
futnover ratio Net Sales Working capital 66,935.90 1,18,147.51 0.57
() Net profit| Net Profit After |y, ¢ e 26,634.90 66,935.92 0.40
ratio Tax
R Capital
' Employed =
() Return on Tangible  Net
Capital employed EBIT Worth + Total 35,788.08 2,36,634.90 0.15
Debt + Deferted
Tax Liability
(g)Return on
investment
(Measured in terms | Net Profit after | Avg, Total
of Retums on | Taxes Assets 26,634.90 | 2,70,922.98 0.10
Total Assets of the
Company)
Note 37 :

The Company has no relation with companies struck off under section 248 of the Commpanies
Act 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act 1956.

Note 38:

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or any goverment authority.

Note 39 :

Thete has been no delay in Charges or satisfaction to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period




Note 40 :

Utilisation of Borrowed funds 2nd shate premium The Company has not advanced ot loaned ot
invested funds to any other person(s) ot entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the undetstanding that the Intermediaty shall: a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in othet
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiates) ot b. provide any guarantee, secutity ot the like to ot on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries. The Company has not teceived any fund from any petson(s) ot entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall: a. ditectly or indirectly lend or invest in other petsons ot
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaties) or b. provide any guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaties for the yeat ended 31* March 2025.

Note 41 :

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee  benefits, during the
empléyment and post-employment, received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and
Employment has teleased dtaft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the
effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for
quantifying the financial impact ate also not yet issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code and will give approptiate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 42 :

Since the Company has not traded or invested in Crypto cutrency ot Virtual Cutrency duting the
financial yeat, no additional disclosure has been provided separately.

Note 43 : Other Statutory Information

i. The‘ Company has no relation with companies sttuck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act 1956.

ii. 'The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
ot govetnment or any government authority.

iii.  Thete has been no delay in Chatges o satisfaction to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory petiod

iv. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated ot pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

v.  The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surtendeted or disclosed as income duting the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or sutvey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) .
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